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at the termination of the contract the contractor left
the road in disrepair in many respects; and he
‘sustains the petition, as having been competently
and relevantly brought.’ He then ‘finds that as
the respondents (advocators) were bound to have
left the said road and whole works ¢“in perfect
repair,” as at 1st May 1868, when the contract
terminated, or to pay for the same if held to have
been defective, as there i3 room for presuming it was,
a warrant would in ordinary circumstances have
now been granted to the petitioner for enforc-
ing his rights, but as such cannot now be done
in respect the state of disrepair of the road, &ec.,
existing as at 1st May 18683, is now mixed up with
defects and disrepair which must have arisen in the
subsequent two years, for which the respondents
cannot be responsible, and though there may be
elements in the process for so far determining the
money value of the disrepair as existing at the
termination of the contract, yet, as the form of the
prayer of the petition precludes the possibility of
extricating matters here, by making any relevant
findings under it fo fix such money value, finds it
therefore incompetent to proceed further in the
cause ; butin respect such a result might have been
prevented by the respondents consenting at the out-
sel, as they ought to have done, to the judicial re-
mit to ascertain the state of the road at the ter-
mination of the contract, finds them liable for such
result. Therefore repels the defences, finds the
respondent liable in payment to the petitioner of
the expenses of process (above sustained), allows an
account thereof to be lodged, end remits the same,
when given in, to the auditor of Court to tax and
report; reserves to the petitioner his right to fur-
ther action, if so advised, and to the respondents
their defences as accords, and decerns.’ :

“ The Lord Ordinary cannot affirm this interlocu-
tor. He cannot punish the advocator as the Sheriff
has done for exercising his legal right of not con-
senting to a remit to a man of skill, more especially
where it does not appear what would have been
the result of such remit, and whether it would or
would not have been unfavourable to the ad-
vocator. He cannot ‘repel the defences,’ where
the case of the pursuer is found not proved, nor
find the defender liable in expenses, where he
cannot pronounce judgment against him. He
thinks that any delay to be complained of is far
more attributable to the petitioner than to the ad-
vocators, He views the case as presenting the
simple everyday aspect of an action which the party
who brought it has failed to sustain by sufficient
evidence. The action must be dismissed, and in
the view of the Lord Ordinary, dismissed with ex-
penses to the defenders.

(Initd.) “W.P”

Hendergon reclaimed, but subsequently lodged a
minute stating that it was not his intention farther
to insist in his reclaiming note. The Court ac-
cordingly refused the prayer of the reclaiming note
and adhered to the interlocutor of the Lord Ordinary.

Counsel for Advocators—The Lord Advocate (Gor-
don) and C. G. Spittal. Wm. Mitchell, 8.8.C,,
Agent.

Counsel for Respondent—The Solicitor-General
(Millar) and J. Marshall. G. L. Sinclair, W.S,,
Agent.
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WESTERN BANK ¥. ADDIE.
Et & contra.
(In Court of Session, 8 Macph., 899.)

Fraud— Restitution—Damages— Partnership— Bank.
A party who had been a shareholder in a
joint-stock banking company for sometime,
bought 135 additional shares from the bank in
1855, In November 1857 the bank stopped
payment, and was subsequently registered and
wound-up voluntarily. In 1859 the purchaser
brought an action against the bank, conclud-
ing for restitutio in tntegrum, or otherwise for
damages, on the grounds of essential error and
fraudulent misrepresentation by the bank di-
rectors. Held (rev. C. 8.) that the pursuer
had not averred a relevant case entitling him
to go to trial. Opinion—(1) That the respon-
dent could not have relief by way of restitutio
tn integrum unless he was in a position to re-
store the very thing he purchased, and that,
he having been a party to proceedings where-
by the company from whom he purchased was
put an end to, the remedy of xestitution was
no longer open to him. (2) That an incor-
porated company cannot, in its corporate cha-
racter, be called on to answer in an action on
fraud ; but if, by the fault of its agent, third
persons have been defrauded, the corporation
may be made responsible to the extent to which
its funds have profited by the fraud. Opinion
(per Lord Chancellor), that in a Court of
equity it is not a valid objection to a suit to
set aside a contract for fraud that the com-
plainant was a member of the company by
the fraud of whose agent, technically imputed
to the company, he was drawn into the con-
tract.

These were appeals against certain interlocutors
of the First Division of the Court of Session pro-
nounced in an action in which Mr Addie, the re-
spondent in the first appeal, was pursuer, and the
appellants, the Western Bank of Scotland, were de-
fenders.

The action in question was raised in November
1859, at the instance of Mr Robert Addie of View-
park against the Western Bank, and concluded for
reduction of certain transfers by which 185 shares
of the capital stock of the Bank were made over to
the respondent ; for repetition of £27,188, 10s. 2d.,
being the amount of the price and of certain calls
which had been paid by him, with interest, but
under deduction of dividends and interest thereon;
or otherwise for payment of £26,000 in name of
damages. The ground of the demand on the part
of the respondent was, that he had been induced to
purchase the shares by the fraudulent misrepre-
sentations of the directors of the Western Bank at
the date of the purchase. It appeared that, prior
to 1855, Mr Addie had been proprietor of 15 shares,
and that, in the months of November and Decem-
ber 1865, he had made those purchases of which he
now sought to be relieved. :

The respondent proposed the following issues :
—* It being admitted,” &c. (Here followed adnis-
sion of the sale of the shares by the Bank at the
price stated, and of the payment by the respondent
of the price and calls.)

No. VIIL
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“1. Whether the pursuer was induced to make the
said purchase under essential error as to the
affairs of the Bank, caused by the misrepre-
-sentations of the said Bank, or of parties act-
ing or entitled to act therefor; and whether,
in respect thereof, the defenders are resting-
owing to the pursuer the sums contained in the
schedule hereunto annexed ?

2. Whether the pursuer was induced to make the
said purchase by the false and frandulent mis-
representations made by the said Bank, or by
its authority, as to the state of its affairs; and
whether, in respect thereof, the defenders are
resting-owing to the pursuer the sums con-
tained in the schedule hereunto annexed ?

8, Whether the pursuer was induced to make the

said purchase under essential error as to the

affairs of the Bank, or parties acting and en-
titled to act therefor, to the loss, injury, and
damage of the pursuer ?

‘Whether the pursuer was induced to make the

said purchase by the false and fraudulent re-

presentations made by the said Bank, or by its
authority, as to the state of its affairs, to the
loss, injury, and damage of the pursuer ?”

Damages laid at £26,000.

Then followed.a schedule of the sums claimed
by the pursuer under the first and second issues.

. The appellants gave in the following counter

issue :— ‘

“ Whether the pursuer has barred himself from
repudiating the said purchase ?” '

On 2d February 1864 the Judges of the First Di-
vision, on the report of the Lord Ordinary, pro-
nounced thefollowing interlocutor:—*Find thatthe
pursuer has stated on record matter relevant fo en-
title him to go to trial : Find that, as the pursuer
insists in his conclusions for reduction, and for res-
titution or repetition, the case, as regards these
primary conclusions, should be now tried and dis-
posed of : Find that of the several issues proposed
by the pursuer in the print, No. 49 of process, for
the trial of the cause, as regards the conclusions
other than the conclusion for damages, the issue
No. 2, as now amended by the pursuer at the bar,
is the appropriate and suitable issue, and is suffi-
cient for the trial of the cause as regards the said
conclusions : Therefore disallow the other or alter-
native issues proposed for the trial of the same con-
clusions, and appoint a fresh print of the said issue,
No. 2, to be lodged, with a view to its being au-
thenticated as the issue for the trial of the cause as
regards the conclusions other than the conclusion
for damages : Find that the defenders are entitled
to the counter issue proposed by them, No. 50 of
process; appoint the same to be comprehended in
the print to be lodged by the pursuer, and, hoc statw,
supersede farther consideration of the conclusion for
damages.”

The issues, as finally adjusted, were :—* It being
admitted ” (here followed admissions ¢ supra).

“ Whether the pursuer was induced to make the
said purchase by false and fraudulent repre-
sentations made by the said Bank as to the
state of its affairs ; and whether the defenders
are resting-owing to the pursuer the sums
contained in the schedule hereunto annexed,
or any part thereof ? Or,

“ Whether the pursuer has barred himself from re-
pudiating the said purchase ?”

The Court, on the 9th February 1864, pro-
nounced this interlocutor :—* The Lords approve of
the issues, No. 51 of process, and appoint the same
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to be the issues for the trial of the cause as regards
the conclusions other than the conclusion for
damages : Farther, they remit the cause to the
Lord Ordinary.”

After various procedure, the case went to trial in
the end of December 1864 and beginning of Janu-
ary 1865, and resulted in a verdict for Mr Addie.

Various exceptions were taken by the defenders
at the trial..

The Lorp PresipEsT, in charging the jury, said
—“That in submitting to the shareholders a re-
port on the affairs of the Bank, and the result of
its business for the past year, the directors have a
duty to perform, and it is part of their duty not to
put forth any statement as to the affairs or pros-
perity of the Bank which they have not reasonable
ground to believe to be true. There is implied in
their report a representation to the effect that they
have reasonable ground to believe in the truth of
what they assert, and those to whom it is ad-
dressed or circulated are entitled so to understand
it. This does not mean that it is incumbent on
the directors personally to go through the books
and test the aceuracy of them, or of the results
brought out in them. It is not to be expected or
supposed that the directors have done so, and their
report is not to be taken as importing or implying
that they have done so. They are entitled to rely
on the information furnished to them by the
officials, to whom the details of the business are
committed, and in whom confidence is placed.
That affords reasonable ground for the directors be-
lieving in the truth of the results so brought out,
and of the inferences reasonably deducible from
them. And if it should unfortunately turn out
that the information so furnished to the directors
was false, by reason of the negligence or fault of
those whose duty it was to furnish correct informa-
tion, the directors who honestly believed it, and
were themselves deceived by it, eannot be held to
have practised any fraud on the shareholders or the
public. But if the case should occur of directors
taking upon them to put forth in their report state-
ments of importance in regard to the affairs of the
Bank, false in themselves, and which they did not
believe, or had no reasonable ground to believe to
be true, then, inasmuch as the embodying of such
statements in the report imports a representation
by the directors that they had reasonable ground
to believe them to be frue, that would be a misre-
presentation and deceit, and, in the estimation of
law, would amount to a fraud practised on those
persons, if any, to whom the report may have been
communicated officially by the Bank, or its mana-
ger acting as the agent and in the interests of the
Bank, he being cognizant of the untruths, with a
view to induce the purchase of shares from the
Bank, if such persons shall have been thereby de-
ceived and induced to make such purchase.”

The defenders excepted to the direction, and
asked the judge to direct the jury : —

1. That the pursuer was not entitled to repudiate
the purchase referred to in the issues on the ground
that he was induced to make it by false and fraudu-
lent representations as to the state of the Bank’s
affairs made by the directors to the sharcholders,
of whom he was at the time one.

2. That if the representations which induced the
pursuer to make the purchase were made in pur-
suance of the contract of partnership, and without
fraud by the directors to the shareholders, of whom
the pursuer was at the time ome, the pursuer was

' not entitled to repudiate the purchase, although the
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said representations were untrue in fact, and were
fraudulent on the part of the manager.

8. That upon the evidence before the jury, the
action is not maintainable in law, and the defen-
ders are entitled to a verdict on the pursuer’s issue.

4. That upon the evidence before the jury, the
. pursuer had in law barred himself from repudiating
the purchase, and the defenders are entitled to a
verdict on the counter-issue.

The judge declined to give these directions, and
.the defenders excepted. Counsel were thereafter
heard on the bill of exceptions, and also on a mo-
tion by the appellants to have the verdict set aside
as contrary to evidence. The Court, on 9th June
1865, disallowed the exceptions, but set aside the
verdict, and granted a new trial.

The appellants, the Western Bank, on 284 June
1865, brought an appeal against the interlocutor
disallowing the exceptions, because, although they
had been relieved from the verdict against them,
they were of opinion that the decision in their
favour of the questions raised by the exceptions
would prevent a new trial altogether. In support
of this appeal they stated the following reasons :—

1, Because the direction given by the presiding
judge fo the jury was erroneous, inasmuch as it im-
ported that if the jury were of opinion that the di-
rectors of the Western Bank put forth in their re-
port statements of importance in regard to the
affairs of the Bank, false in themselves, and which
they had no reasonable ground to believe to be
true, though they did, in fact, believe such state-
ments to be true, that would be deceit, and in the
estimation of law would amount to a fraud; and
because what was said by the learned judge
amounted to a direction that the jury might affirm
the respondent’s issue if they thought that the
directors had committed gross error in judgment,
though they were not of opinion that the directors
had committed frand in making such statements.

2. Because the respondent was not entitled to a
verdict, in respect he was himself a shareholder at
the date of the purchase of the said shares, and
because the fraud of the directors could not be im-
puted to the company or the shareholders in a
question with him; and therefore the presiding
judge should have given the first direction asked.

3. Because it was not sufficient for the respon-
dent’s case to prove that the representations of the
directors were untrue in point of fact, and fraudu-
lent on the part of the manager, and because the
respondent was not entitled to a verdict unless
fraud on the part of the directors was proved ; and
therefore the presiding judge should have given
the second direction asked.

4. Because the respondent was not entitled to
the remedy of reduction and of restitutio in integrum,
and therefore was nof entitled to a verdict, in re-
spect—(1) The transaction sought to be reduced
had been completed ; (2) the respondent could re-
cover no more than the amount by which the Com-
peny had been benefited by the transaction; (3)
the respondent was not in a position to give resti-
tution; and (4) because of the time which had
elapsed since the date of the purchase, during
which time the respondent was a shareholder, and
because facts were established before the jury,
about which there neither was nor could be dis-
pute, in respect of which the action was not main-
tainable in law; and therefore the presiding judge
should have given the third direction asked.

6. Because facts were established before the jury
about which there neither was nor could be dispute,

in respect of which the respondent had in law
barred himself from repudiating the purchage ; and
therefore the presiding judge should have given the
fourth direction asked.

The respondent, Mr Addie, submitted that the in-
terlocutor appealed against ought to be affirmed :—

1. Because the law is correctly laid down in the
portion of the Lord President’s charge, to which the
first exception relates, in respect that statements
made in the reports by the directors to the share-
holders imported a representation that the directors
had reasonable ground for believing the said state-
ments to be true, and that they had used reason-
able means for obtaining information in regard to
the matters to which the said statements related.

2. Because the failure of persons in the situation
of the directors of the Western Bank to have rea-
sonable ground for their belief as to the affairs of
the Bank, respecting which it falls within their
province to report, and respecting which they do
report, implies gross negligence, equivalent to
fraud.

8. Because none of the directions asked by the
appellants could be given consistently with the pre-
vious judgments in the cause.

4, Because the first direction asked was unsound
in law, in respect that the fraud alleged by the re-
spondent, being a fraud by the Company or persons
representing the Company in its separate persona,
it is immaterial that the respondent was at the date
of the fraud a shareholder in the company.

5. Because the second direction asked was erro-
neous, in respect that representations made by the
manager in regard to-matters, and in transactions
in which he was authorised to represent, and did
représent the Bank, were in law representations by
the Bank, and, if fraudulent on the part of the
manager, infer liability as for fraud on the pa.rt of
the Bank.

6, Because the third and fourth directions were
rightly refused, in respect that a contract induced
by fraud is null, as in a question with the party de-
frauded.

7. Because it is not a condition precedent that
the party defrauded, claiming restitution, shall be
able to give restitution, and because the inability
of the respondent to restore the shares in the con-
dition in which he obtained them, if such inability
exists, is not attributable to the fault of the re-
spondent.

8. Because the respondent cannot be debarred
from obtaining the remedy of restitution by any
acts done by him while he remained in ignorance
of the frand.

9. Because the acts founded on by the appel-
lants, as constituting bar, were induced by, and
flowed as consequences from, the same fraud where-
by the respondent was led to purchase the shares
in question.

10. Because no right or interest of the Bank, or
of the shareholders, was prejudiced or injuriously
affected by any act of the respondeént.

11. Because there were disputed facts material
to the issues, with reference to which evidence was
adduced at the trial, proper for the determination
of the jury, and which would have been withdrawn
from the consideration of the jury had the presid-
ing judge given the third and fourth directions.
asked by the appellants.

After this appeal was presented, the appellants
asked leave of the First Division of the Court to
appeal against the interloc#tors of 2d and 9th Feb-
rusry 1864, on the ground that it was for the in-
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terest of both parties that the judgment of the
House of Lords should be forthwith obtained upon
the questions of law and relevaney involved in the
action. The Court granted leave as craved, and
an appeal against the said interlocutors was accord-
ingly presented by the appellants on 8th February
1866.

Under this second appeal they contended that
no issue should have been allowed to the respon-
dent, and that they ought to have been assoilzied
from the conclusions of the summons in respect of
the facts and circumstances alleged and admitted
on record.

A cross appeal was, on 19th February 1866, pre-
sented by the respondent, Mr Addie, against the
said interlocutors of 2d and 9th February 1864,—
(1) In so far as the issues of essential error, pro-
posed by him, were thereby disallowed; (2) in so
far as he was thereby compelled to go to trial upon
& single issue, applicable to the conclusions for re-
duction and restitution or repetition, instead of be-
ing allowed to go to trial at the same time upon an
issue or issues applicable to that conclusion, and
also upon an issue or issues applicable to the con-
clusion for damages ; and (8) in so far a8 the coun-
ter issue above set forth was thereby allowed to the
defenders in the action. '

The argument in support of all these appeals
was embodied in the cases lodged for the parties in
the first appeal against the interlocutor disallowing
the exceptions.

Arrorney-Gexerars (Rorr), Sir Rousprrr Parmer,
Q.C., and Smaxp, for Western Bank, appellants.

Deax or Facovry (Moncreirr), Girrorp, and
Barrour, for Mr Addie, respondent,

Lorp Crancerror—My Lords, this is an appeal
against interlocutors of the First Division of the
Court of Session, in an action instituted by the
respondent against the Western Bank of Scotland
and the Official Liquidator appointed to wind up
the affairs of the Bank.

The summons in the action demands a reduction
and restitution in integrum against two deeds of
transference of 185 shares in the Bank, and the re-

payment of the sum of £10,818, 10s, 2d., being the
* price of thesaid shares, and also of thesums of £1685,
£1686, and £13,600, being the amounts respec-
tively of three calls made upon such shares; and,
alternately, it demands damages in respect of the
transaction.

The following are the facts stated by the pursuer
in his condescendence, and admitted by him in
answers to the defenders’ statement, The defenders
are a Joint-Stock Banking Company established in
1832, which carried on business at Glasgow and
elsewhere down to November 1857, when it stopped
payment.

The paid up capital amounted to £1,500,000,
divided into 30,000 shares of £50 each. By the
deed of co-partnership, the business and affairs of
the Company were to be regulated, conducted, and
carried on by a governor and deputy-governor,
six extraordinary and six ordinary directors, who
were constituted therepresentatives of the Company,
and to whom the whole management of the business
and affairs of the Company were intrusted ; and the
ordinary directors, together with the manager, or
failing him or in his absence, the cashier of the
Company, were to constitute the ordinary board of
directors and committee of management of the
Company ; and by one of the articles of the deed it
is declared that it shall be lawful for the directors
to purchase, for behoof of the Company, any of the

shares of the capital stock which may either be
offered for sale, or by private bargain, or shall come
to be publicly sold.

Prior to the year 1855, the pursuer was proprietor
of 15 shares in the Bank, and interested to the ex-
tent of one-half in 80 shares belonging to a dissolved
firm of Addie & Company.

He was also a customer, and kept his private ac-
count with a branch of the Bank at Coatbridge.
In November 1855 the directors sold to the pursuer
135 shares belonging to the Bank at the price of
£76 per share, amounting in all to the sum of
£10,200, which were transferred by two separate
deeds of transference, dated respectively the 80th
November and 4th December 1855.

The transaction of the sale of those shares was
conducted through Mr John Taylor, the manager
of the Bank.

In the June of each year meetings were held,
when the directors submitted to the shareholders
reports as to the state of the affairs of the Bank for
the year ending in the previous month of May.

By the terms of the co-partnership dzed, no part-
ners except the ordinary board of directors were
entitled to examine the books of the Company.

The reports submitted by the directors to the
different meetings of the shareholders held from
the years 1851 to 18565, both inclusive, represented
the business of the Bank as highly prosperous, and
that its affairs were in a satisfactory and flourishing
condition.

In particular, the report for the year 1855 stated,
that for the year ending May 1855, the business of the
Bank had been eminently successful, and that its
affairs were in & sound and satisfactory condition ;
that after providing for bad and doubtful debts, the
profits for the year available for dividend were up-
wards of £153,000.

These reports were untrue. Not long after its
institution the Bank sustained heavy losses through
bad debts, and in 1851 had lost half its capital. In
May and June 1855 the bad debts had reached the
amount of £1,360,000, and the Bank had at that
time lost £1,000,000 of its capital, or more than
one-half thereof. The result brought out in the
report for the year 1855 was obtained by taking as
good assets of the Bank, the whole of the bad and
irrecoverable debts. The reports were prepared by
Taylor, the manager ; and, as the pursuer alleges in
his condescendence, were submitted to the share-
holders for the fraudulent purpose of concealing from
them the actual condition of the Bank, and induec-
ing a belief that it was in a sound and prosperous
state, and of keeping up the price of the shares,
and inducing the shareholders and others to pur-
chase the shares belonging to the Bank,

The pursuer farther alleges in his condescendence
that in November 1855, Taylor, for the fraudulent
purpose of effecting a sale of part of the shares be-
longing to the Bank, caused Thomas Torrance, the
agent for the Bank at Coatbridge, falsely to repre-
sent to the pursuer that a purchase of shares in
the Bank would be a good investment, Taylor well
knowing that it would not. That the pursuer had
no means of knowing the true state of the Bank,
except from the information communicated to the
shareholders at the annual meetings by the re-
ports of the directors and by the declarations and
payments of dividends; and that, relying on the
truth of these reports, and in particular on the re-
port of 1865, and on the fraudulent representations
made to him by Taylor through Torrance, the pur-
suer purchased and paid for the 185 shares, and
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accepted the transference thereof. That instead of
the shares being worth £76 per share they were
worthless, or at least of inconsiderable value.

Subsequently to his purchase of the shares, the
pursuer received the following dividends upon them
—4£2170 on the 27th December 1855 ; £283, 10s. on
12th July 1856 ; £283, 10s. on the 24th December
18566 ; and £294, 17s. 9d. on the 10th July 1857;
amounting in the whole to £1131, 17s, 9d.

During the period of the Bank's carrying on
business, it was not an incorporated company ; but,
having stopped payment on the 9th November, it
was resolved by the shareholders to wind up volun-
tarily under the Joint Stock Companies Act 1856,
and on the 8th December 1857 the Company was re-
gistered and incorporated under the Joint Stock
Companies Act 1857. In the course of the liquida-
tion, in which the pursuer took part as one of a
committee fo assist the liquidators, it was found that
losses to the extent of £8,000,000 had been incur-
red ; and, in consequence, two calls were made upon
the shareholders, which the pursuer paid fo the
amount of £16,875, under protest.

Upon this state of facts the pursuer, by two of
his pleas in law, alleged that he was entitled to
the decree of reduction and payment as concluded
for—1. In respect that the directors and managers
of the Bank made false misrepresentations to him
as to the condition of the Bank, and that he was
thereby induced to buy the shares in question.
2. That essential error was produced by the misre-
presentation of the bank. The defenders by their
pleas in law alleged that the pursuer's averments
were not relevant or sufficient in law. That the
statements and representations of the directors or
agents of the Company were unauthorised by the
Company. That the pursuer being a shareholder,
the representations complained of were made by the
directors on behalf of himself and the other share-
holders. That restitution sn éntegrum being im-
possible, the pursuer could not maintain the action,
and that he was bound by acquiescence.

The record having been closed and the defenders
having been heard before the Lord Ordinary on
their objections to the relevancy, his Lordship ap-
pointed the pursuer to give in issues. Issues hav-
ing been lodged, the Lord Ordinary reported the
cause to the First Division of ‘the Court of Session.
After hearing counsel, their Lordships pronounced
an interlocutor appointing the parties mutually to
lodge cases on the whole questions of law and rele-
vancey involved. Casges for both parties were ac-
cordingly lodged, and the pursuer having proposed
certain issnes and the defenders a counter issue,
the Lords pronounced an interlocutor that the pur-
suer has stated on record matter relevant to entitle
him to go to trial; and that, as the pursuer insisted
in the conclusions for reduction and for restitution
or repetition, the case, as regarded those primary
conclusions, should be tried and disposed of, and
that the issue proposed by the pursuer was the ap-
propriate and suitable issue.

Agninst this interlocutor the defenders have ap-
pealed ; and the first question that your Lordships
have to consider is, whether the case stated by the
pursuer is a relevant case or not ?

In determining the relevancy of a pursuer’s case,
the Court must look not only to the cause of action
stated in his condescendence, but also to any ad-
missions made by him upon the defenders’ state-
ment of facts, which are thereby adopted by him
and become part of his own case.

Upon the statements and admissions of the pur-

suer two questions arose—first, Whether he was en-
titled originally to rescind the contract for the pur-
chase of the shares in question? and secondly,
‘Whether he was debarred of his right by the change
which had taken place in the condition of the Com-
pany at the time when his action was brought?

Upon the first question the Court had to deter-
mine how far a company is bound by the misrepre-
sentations of its managing body ; upon which there
are numerous irreconcileable decisions.

In Dodgson’s case (8 De. G. and Sur., 85), Vice-
Chancellor Knight Bruce held, that * Directors
cannot be the agents of the body of shareholders to
commit a fraud, and that the directors only were
liable for their conduct.” This opinion was adopt-
ed by Vice-Chancellor Parker in Bernard’s case
(5 De. G. and Sur., 289), where he said Dodgson's
case shows that the directors cannot be the agents of
the company to commit a fraud, and therefore, even
if Mr Bernard had been induced to take shares by
the misrepresentations of the directors, that was
no reason why he should be a contributory. But
in Brockwell’s case (4 Drewry, 205), where the
directors of the Royal British Bank, in their pub-
lished reports, misrepresented the state of the Com-
pany, and Brockwell, relying upon the truth of the
reports, purchased some new shares which were
issued by the Company, upon which it was sought
to make him a contributory, Vice-Chancellor Kin-
dersley held (principally upon the authority of the
case of the National Exchange Company v. Drew,
decided in this House), that reports made by direc-
tors fo a company, if they got into cirenlation, must
be considered as reports of the company, and Brock-
well was removed from the list of contributories.
The words “if they get into circulation” must mean
if they are designedly published,” for the Vice-
Chancellor could never have intended to hold that,
if reports addressed to the shareholders, and to
them alone, get into the hands of third persons by
private and unauthorised circulation, they must be
taken to be reports for which the company are re-
sponsible.

This case of Brockwell was overruled by Lord
Campbell (Lord Chancellor) and the Lords Justices
in Mizer's case (4 De. G. and Jo. §75), which was
also & case connected with the British Bank. The
Lord Chancellor in his judgment said—* Clearly
there was fraud, and gross fraud, on the part of the
directors, and I have no doubt that Mixer was in-
duced by fraud to take his shares. I think, how-
ever, that it was a fraud on the part of the directors
which cannot be attributed to the company,” and
the appellant was continued upon the list of con-
tributories.

In that case the true reason was given why, even
if the purchase of shares was induced by the fraud
of the company, the person defrauded could not re-
sist his liability to contribute as a shareholder. “It
ig & settled rule,” the Lord Chancellor said, *that a
contract obtained by fraud is not void, but that the
party defrauded has & right to avoid it if he does
so while matters remain in their former position.”
If, therefore, a person who has been induced by
fraud to become a shareholder in & company has .
not relieved himself from the contract at the time
when it is being wound up, he cannot afterwards
divest himself of his liability.

In the case of the National Exchange Company of
@lasgow v. Drew, opinions were expressed as to the
responsibility of a company for the fraudulent mis-
representations of its directors, which are entitled
to the highest consideration. My noble and learned
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friend Lord Cranworth said, * What is the conse-
guence of the company receiving a report and pub-
lishing it fo the world? I confess that, in my
opinion, from the nature of things, and from the
exigencies of society, that must be taken as between
the company and third persons to be a representa-
tion by the company. The company as an abstract
being can represent or do nothing. It can only
act by its managers, When, therefore, the direc-
tors, in the discharge of their dufy, fraudulently,
for the purpose of misleading others as to the state
of the concerns of the company, represent the com-
pany to be in a different state from that in which
they know it to be, and the persons to whom the re-
presentation is addressed act upon it in the belief
that it is true, I cannot think that society can go on
without treating that as a misrepresentation by the
company ;”’ and Lord St Leonards said—* I have
certainly come to this conclusion, that, if represen-
tations are made by a company fraudulently, for
the purpose of enhancing the value of their stock,
and they induce a third person to purchase stock,
those representations, so made by them for that pur-
pose, do bind the company. I consider representa-
tionsby the directors of a company as representations
by the company—although they may be representa-
tions made to the company it is their own represen-
tation,”

These opinions received the sanction of Lord
‘Westbury (Lord Chancellor) in the case of the New
Brunswick and Canada Railway Company v. Cony-
beare (9 House of Lords, p. 725), where he said—
“ T certainly am not at all disposed to advise your
Lordships to throw any doubt upon this doctrine,
that if reports are made to the shareholders of a
company by their directors, and the reports are
adopted by the shareholders at one of the appointed
meetings of the company, and these reports are
afterwards industriously circulated, misrepresenta-
tions must undoubtedly be taken after their adop-
tion to be representations and statements made
with the authority of the company, and therefore
binding upon the company.” ’

My noble and learned friend Lord Cranworth,
in this last case, adhering to the opinion which he
had expressed in the cases of Ranger v. The Great
Western Railway Company, and The National Ez-
change Company v. Drew. suggested a distinction as
to the effect upon the company of misrepresenta-
tions by the directors, which seems to me to explain
the expressions of * misrepresentations of directors
being misrepresentations of a company,” and *“ mis-
representations of directors being binding upon a
company;” and, to place the question upon its true
ground, my noble and learned friend said, “The
principle (of making a company responsible for the
misrepresentations of the directors) cannot be car-
ried to the wild length that I have heard suggested,
namely, that you can bring an action against the
company upon the ground of deceit because the
directors have done an act which might render them
liable to such an action. That I take not to be the
law of the land, nor do I believe that it would be
the law of the land if the directors were the agents
of some person not a company. The fraud must
be a fraud that is either personal on the part of the
individual making it, or some fraud which another
person has impliedly authorised him to be guilty
of.

“The distinction to be drawn from the autho-
rities, and which is sanctioned by sound principle,
appears to be this:-—Where a person has been
drawn into a contract to purchase shares belonging

to a company by fraudulent misrepresentations of
the direetors, and the directors, in the name of the
company, seek to enforce that contract; or the per-
son who has been deceived institutes a suit against
the company to rescind the contract on the ground
of fraud, the misrepresentations are imputable to
the company, and the purchaser cannot be held to
his contract, because a company cannot retain any
benefit which they have obtained through the
fraud of their agents. But if the person who has
been induced to purchase shares by the fraud of
the directors, instead of seeking to set aside the
contract, prefers to bring an action for damages for
the deceit, such an action cannot be maintained
against the company, but only against the direc-
tors personally.”

The action of Mr Addie is for the reduction of
the deeds of transference of the shares, and alter-
natively for damages. But, as it is brought against
the company, it will follow, from what has been
said, that he cannot recover unless he is entitled
to rescind the contraet. The question then arises,
Does he show, upon the statement of his case, that
the false reports of the directors, and particularly
the report of 1855, were the proximate and imme-
diate cause of the purchase of the shares by the
pursuer? I do not think that it is necessary that
they should be the sole cause, for, to repeat what I
said in Nicol's case,—** Supposing that the reports
of the directors formed a material part of the in-
ducement to take the shares, without which the

- purchase would never have been made, I cannot

think that the effect of them is destroyed because
other influences were at the same time at work
which contributed to the success of these false re-
presentations.” But where fraudulent reports are
made the ground for rescinding a contract for the
purchase of shares, the fraud is not to be estab-
lished by impressions received from these reports
at some former period, however distant, but they
should be clearly shown to be in the mind of the
person at the time of the negotiations for the pur-
chage, and to have been one of the causes leading
to the contract. Apart from these reports, there is
no statement of any representations made to the
pursuer by the directors, or by their authority.
That the directors knew of Taylor’s endeavours to
induce the pursuer to take shares in the Bank, is
nowhere alleged. Although merely agents of the
Company themselves, and therefore, according to
the well-known rule, they could not depute any
other person to act for them, yet if they had em-
ployed Taylor to make false representations of the
stability of the Bank to the pursuer, it would, in
my opinion, have been of the same effect as if they
had been made by themselves. But not only is
there no statement in the case of any such delega-
tion of authority to Taylor, but it is not even
shown upon the record that Taylor had any per-
sonal communication with the pursuer. Taylor,
it is stated, employed Terrance, the agent of the
Bank at Coatbridge, where the pursuer kept his
account, to endeavour to get him to take shares,
But it is not alleged that Taylor instructed Tor-
rance to speak of the prosperity of the Bank, and to
tell the pursuer that he considered it to be a good
investment for his money, nor that Torrance did
not at the time believe in the stability of the Bank,

Therefore, though this was a case in which the
pursuer was seeking to rescind a contract from
which the Company had derived benefit, his ac-
tion was maintainable; yet I entertain consider-
able doubt whether in his statement he connected
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the directors sufficiently with the alleged mis-
representations to make them imputable to the
Company, and whether he did not fail to state a
relevant case upon the record on this ground.

But on the question, Whether the pursuer was
not deprived of his right to rescind the contract by
the change in the character and condition of the
Company ? which appears from his condescendence
and admissions, I have no doubt that the rele-
vancy of his case altogether failed. :

‘Whether the change of the Company from an
unincorporated to an incorporated Banking Com-
pany, for the purpose of more conveniently winding
up its affairs under the Joint-Stock Companies
Act 1856, so changed the nature and character of
the shares purchased by the pursuer as to render a
restitutio in integrum impracticable, is a question, if
it were necessary to determine, I should wish to
consider more carefully.

It was undoubtedly one of the grounds upon
which the case of Clarke v. Dickson was decided.
In that case a mining company was, with the
plaintifi’s assent, registered as a company with
limited liability, and was wound up under the
Winding-up Act. In an action for money had and
received to recover back the amount paid for the
purchase of the shares, the Court held that the ac-
tion was not maintainable. Mr Justice Erle said,
‘“He has changed the nature of the article; the
shares he received were shares in a company on
the cost-book principle; the plaintiff offers to re-

_store them after he has converted them into shares-

in a joint-stock corporation;” and in this opinion
Mr Justice Crompton agreed.

It is clear, however, upon the authorities, that,
after the crisis had arrived of the failure of the
Company, and the order for winding it up had been
made, the time for rescinding the contract was
gone. This, as I have already shown, was the
ground of the decision in Miéxer’s case. That was
a case between an alleged shareholder and the
creditors of the company, and it may be thought
that different considerations will apply where the
question arises between a company and the person
who has been fraudulently induced to become a
shareholder, but the case of Clarke v. Dickson shows
that there is no distinction between the cases.
There the action was against three directors of a
company to recover back money paid by the plain-
tiff for shares which he was induced to purchase
by the false and fraudulent representations of the

defendants. In that case the company was being.

wound up under the Winding-up Act; and it was
during the process of winding up that (as in this
case) the plaintiff, for the first time, discovered that
the representations by which he was led to make
the purchase were false. The Court held that the
plaintiff was not entitled to recover. Mr Justice
Crompton, after adverting to the rule of law, that
¢ g, contract induced by fraud is not void, but void-
able at the option of the party defrauded,” said, “It
seems to me to follow, that when that party exer-
cises his option to rescind the contract, he must be
in a state to rescind; that is, he must be in such a
situation as to be able fo put the parties into their
original state before the contract.”

1t may seem to be a hardship on the pursuer
that he should be so compelled to keep the shares,
because, in ignorance of the fraud practised upon
him, he retained them until an event occurred
which changed their nature, and prevented his re-
turning the very thing which he received. But he
is not without remedy. If he is fixed with the

shares he may still have his action for damages
against the directors—supposing he is able to estab-
lish that he was induced to enter into the contract
by misrepresentations for whieh they are respon-
sible. But, in his present action, the pursuer could
not have recovered damages against the Company ;
and therefore, both on the claim in his summons
for restitution and repayment, and also for damages,
the pursuer stated no relevant case upon the re-
cord; and the first interlocutor, « finding that the
pursuer has stated on record matter relevant to en-
title him to go to trial,” ought not to have been
made, and no issues ought to have been directed.

But the case can hardly be left here, considering
the proceedings which have since taken place,
The issues approved by the Court were afterwards
tried by the Lord President and a jury, and a ver-
dict was found for the pursuer. A bill of exeep-
tions was tendered to their Lordships, summing up
both on the ground of mis-direction and non-direc-
tion. A rule was afterwards granted to set aside
the verdict as contrary to-evidence, and for a new
trial. This rule and the bill of exceptions came
on for argument at the same time, when the Court
of the First Division pronounced two interlocutors
of the same date, one of them disallowing the ex-
ceptions, which is appealed from, and the other
setting aside the verdict and granting a new trial,
which, by the 8th section of the 556 Geo. III., chap.
42, ig “final and conclusive, and not liable fo be
questioned anywhere.” .

But it would mot be right to pass by the other
parts of the case which were brought before us in
the argument.

The issues ultimately approved of by the Court
were :—

1. Whether the pursuer was induced to make
the purchase by false and fraudulent representa-
tions made by the Bank as to the state of its
affairs, and whether the defenders are resting
owing to the pursuer the sums contained in the
schedule hereunto annexed, or any part there-
of; or,

“ 2. Whether the pursuer has barred himself
from repudiating the said purchase.”

In his charge to the jury, the Lord President
told them, that if the case should occur of directors
taking upon them to putforth in their report state-
ments of importance. in regard to the affairs of the
Bank, false in themselves, and which they did not
believe, or had no reasonable ground to believe to be
true, that would be a misrepresentation and deceit.
The counsel for the defenders excepted to this

- direction so far as it related to the directors having

no reasonable ground to believe.the truth of the
statements in the reports, and they also called upon
the Lord President to direct the jury that, upon the
evidence before.them, the action was not maintain-
able in law, and that the defenders were entitled to
a verdict upon the first issue, and that upon the
evidence the pursuer had in law barred himself
from repudiating the purchase, and the defenders
were entitled to a verdict on the second issue,

The Lord President declined to give these direc-
tions, and the bill of exceptions was tendered. The
interlocutor, as already mentioned, disallowed all
these exceptions.

I agree in the propriety of this interlocutor so far
as it relates to the exception on the ground of mis-
direction. In the argument upon this exception
the case was put of an honest belief being enter-
tained by the directors, of the reasonablgness of
which it was said the jury, upon this direction,
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would have to judge. But supposing a person
makes an untrue statement, which he asserts to be
the result of a bona fide belief of its truth, how can
the dona fides be tosted except by considering the
grounds of such belief? And if an untrue state-
ment is made, founded upon a belief which is desti-
tute of all reasonable grounds, or which the least
inquiry would immediately correct, I do not see
that it is not fairly and correctly characterised as
misrepresentation and deceit.

The other exceptions, upon the refusal of the
Lord President to direct the jury to find for the de-
fenders on both the issues, may be disposed of by
reference to what I have already said upon the ap-
peal against the first interlocutor on the subject of
relevancy. I expressed a doubt whether, upon the
record, there were proper allegations to connect the
directors with the representations which induced
the pursuer to purchase the shares. At the trial
the evidence upon this point was equally deficient.
Taylor was not called, and no authority was shown
to have been given to him by the directors for the
employment of Torrance to persuade the pursuer to
purchase shares. The pursuer himself did not prove
that he had any communication with Taylor. But
as he swore that he * purchased on the faith of the
reports and what Torrance told him,” I do not
think that the Lord President could have with-
drawn the case from the jury upon this first issue;
because, if the reports formed a material part of the
inducement to the purchase, then, whether Tor-
rance’s representations were brought home to the
directors or not, there were sufficient misrepresen-
tations proceeding directly from themselves, which
were proper for the consideration of the jury.

But it will be collected from what I have already
said, that the exception on the ground of the Lord
President having refused to direct the jury that the
pursuer had in law barred himself from repudiating
his purchase was a good exception. The exception
is not, perhaps, worded with exact precision, but I
think it is sufficiently so to have required the judge
to give the proper direction to the jury. The de-
fenders evidently pointed to some act of the pursuer
by which he had barred himself from rescinding
the purchase of the shares, referring, probably, to
his receipt of dividends, and to the part he took in
assisting the liquidators in the winding up. But
without any of these acts the pursuer would have
been barred by the mere fact of the winding up of
the Company having found him with the shares in
his possession; and it would mot be incorrect to
say that he had barred himself by retaining the
shares until the Company was brought into this
condition.

As this exception ought to have prevailed, the
interlocutor disallowing all the exceptions cannot
be maintained.

There are one or two other points which were
raised in the course of the argument which deserve
a short notice. It was said, if the fraud is im-
putable to the Company from the representations
of the directors, as the pursuer was a shareholder
at the time, the representations are his own, as one
of the Company, to bimself through his agent. I
think the fallacy of the argument lies in this:—in
a suit instituted against a company to rescind a
contract to purchase shares, which the purchaser
was induced to enter into by the misrepresentations
of directors, the misrepresentations are not regarded
as actually made by the company, but they are not
permitted to retain the benefit of a contract which
has been fraudulently obtained for them by their

agent. And although, according to the strict rules
of the common law, a man cannot be plaintiff and
defendant at the same time, yet in a court of
equity (and equity as well as law is administered
in the Scotch Courts) it could not, in my opinion,
be a valid objection to a suit to set aside a contract
for fraud, that the complainant was a member of
the company by the fraud of whose agents, techni-
cally imputed to the company, he was drawn into
the contract.

Another objection which was urged against the
right of the pursuer to be relieved from his con-
tract was, that it would prejudice the interests of
other innocent shareholders who had acquired
shares after the pursuer became possessed of those
in question. In answer to this argument, I would
only observe, that these subsequent shareholders
either bought their shares under circumstances
which compel them to hold them, or they also were
induced to join the Company by false represen-
tations. 1If they are bound to continue to be share-
holders, I do not see upon what principle they can
contend that their purchase of shares prevents the
contraet of the pursuer being impeached for fraud ;
and if they, like the pursuer, have been deceived
into the purchase of their shares, and abstain from
taking proceedings fo exonerate themselves from
liability, there is no reason why their forbearance
should bind the pursuer from taking steps to rid
himself of a contract into which he has been drawn
by a similar fraud.

It only remains to observe, that although the in-
terlocutors directing the issues ought to be reversed,
on the ground that the defenders were entitled to
judgment on the question of relevancy, yet, :upon
the pursuer’s cross appeal, it appears to me that
upon the record there ought to have been no issue
with respect to his claim to damages. His action
being against the Company for the fraud of the di-
rectors, the pursuer could only recover in such ac-
tion if he were entitled to rescind the contract. If
his elaim rested in damages, he ought to have pro-
ceeded against the directors, who would alone have
been liable to him in that form of action.

Upon a review of the whole case, I must advise
your Lordships that all the interlocutors appealed
from ought to be reversed.

Lorp Cranworra—DPerhaps my noble and learned
friend will allow me to call his attention to this,
that “ all the interlocutors appealed from ”’ will in-
clude the interlocutor as to the new trial.

Lorp CraNceLros—1 think that is not appealed
from.

Siz Rounpert Parmer—The interlocutors ap-
pealed from are the interlocutor which affirmed the
relevancy of the directed issues and the interlocu-
tor which overruled the exceptions. The reversal
of those two interlocutors will practically dispose of
the whole thing.

Lorp CrancELLoR—MYy Lords, there is great dif-
ficulty with regard to the interlocutor directing a
new trial to take place. How that may be disposed
of I cannot say. Your Lordships will observe that
no interlocutor granting a new trial can be matter
of appeal under the 48th of Geo. III. For, of course,
all the subsequent proceedings give way when the
preceding interlocutors upon which they are found-
ed are reversed. How the Court of Session will
deal with the interlocutor ordering a new trial,
probably my noble and learned friend, who is bet-
ter acquainted with matters of this description, will
inform your Lordships.

Losp Coroxsay—There is no difficulty about it.
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I will explain it to your Lordships after my noble
and learned friend has given his opinion.

Lorp CranworrE—My Lords, the respondent,
who is pursuer in this action, sought relief on one
of two grounds. First, he claimed the right of re-
pudiating altogether the contract for the price of
135 shares, on the ground that he was induced to
enter into that contract by the frand of the direc-
tors, which he alleged ought to be treated as the
fraud of the Company. Or, secondly, If from lapse
of time, or from the mode in which he had after the
purchase dealt with the shares, he is precluded
from that relief, then he claimed to recover from
the appellants compensation to the full extent to
which he had been damaged by having been frau-
dulently led to enter into the contract. The ex-
tent of relief would in fact be the same on which-
ever ground it might be made to rest.

Relief under the first head, which is what in
Scotland is designated restitutio in integrum, can
only be had where the party seeking it is able to
put those against whom it is asked in the same
situation in which they stood when the contract
was entered into. Indeed, this is necessarily to be
inferred from the very expression restitutio in inte-
grum; and the same doctrine is well understood
and constantly acted on in England.

The question, therefore, on this head of relief is,
‘Whether, assuming the existence of the fraud al-
leged by the respondent, and that it was a fraud
which he was warrahted in imputing to the Com-
pany, for whom the directors were acting, the facts
alleged are such as entitle him to relief by way of
“ restitutio in integrum,” whether a relevant case is
stated warranting that relief? The learned judges
below were of opinion that they ought not to pro-
nounce any judgment on this point until the facts
had been investigated by a jury trial, and they ac-
cordingly framed issues for that purpose. But,
with all deference to them, I think no such trial
was necessary; because, on the facts stated and
admitted on the record, no relevant case is stated
entitling the pursuer to relief against the appellants.

The Company, by whose directors the fraud is al-
leged to have been committed, wasan unincorporated
Banking Company, carrying on business under the
provisions of the 7th of George IV, c. 67, with a
capital of £1,600,000, divided into 30,000 shares of
£b0 each. Assuming that this Company, by its
directors, fraudulently induced the respondent to
purchase 135 of these shares, so as to entitle him
to relief against the Company, he cannot insist on
restitutio tn tntegrum unless be is in a condition to
restore the shares which he so purchased. But
this is impossible. The purchase.was made by him
in 1855, and in 1857 he was party to a proceeding
whereby the company from which the purchase
was made wag put an end to. It ceased to be an
unincorporated and became an incorporated com-
pany, with many statutable incidents connected
with it which did not exist before the incorpora-
tion. This new company is now in course of be-
ing wound-up; but even if that were not so, if it
still were carrying on the business of bankers, resti-
tutio in tntegrum would have been impossible. The
respondent might in that case have given up 135
shares of the new company, and these shares
might have been as valuable as, or even more valu-
able than, the shares which he was induced to pur-
chase ; but they would not have been shares in the
game company ; and unless he was in a position to

restore the very thing which he was fraudulently-

induced to purchase, he cannot have relief by way

ER

of restitutio in integrum. The time had gone by
during which the respondent could repudiate the
contract. The circumstances were 8o changed that
he could not put the appellants in the condition in
which they were before the frandulent sale to him,
I agree with the learned judges below, that the
circumstances that the shares, from mismanagement
or otherwise, had become depreciated in value sub-
sequently to the purchase by the pursuer, would of -
itself have been of no importance. He might still
have been able to restore that which he was frau-
dulently induced to purchase. But what in fact
took place was not a depreciation, but a destruction
of the thing purchased; the unincorporated com-
pany in which he had been induced to purchase
shares no longer existed. The view which I thus
take of this case makes it unnecessary to consider
whether there are not other grounds excluding this
particular relief.

But although the respondent is excluded from
redress in this form, it remains to consider whether
he may not recover compensation in damages, and
80 obtain relief as beneficial as that from which he
is thus barred. But here, too, I am of opinion that
the respondent must fail. My noble and learned
friend has explained the ground on which, and the
extent to which, an incorporated company may be
made responsible for the frauds of its agents. An
incorporated company cannot in its corporate cha-
racter be called on to answer in an action for de-
ceit. But if, by the frauds of its agents, third per-
sons have been defrauded, the corporation may be
made responsible to the extent to which its funds
have profited by these frauds.

If it is supposed that in what I said when the
case of Ranger v. Great Western Railway Company
was decided in this House, I meant to give it as
my opinion that the company could, in that case,
have been made to answer as for a tort in an action
of deceit, I can only say I had no such meaning.
In that case I came to the conclusion, without
hesitation, that no fraud had been committed ; and
therefore the question of the liability of the com-
pany on account of the suggested fraud did not
arise. The allegation of Ranger was, that by the
fraud of Mr Brimel, the company’s engineer, he
had been induced to contract to do, and had done,
works for them at a price grossly below their real
cost—say for £20,000, instead of £40,000. The
company got the full benefit of what he had so
done; and in what I said I merely wished to
guard against its being supposed that I assented
to the arguments that there would be no means of
reaching the company if the fact of the fraud had
been established. By what particular proceeding
relief could have been obtained, is a matter on
which I did not intend to express, and, indeed,
had not formed, any opinion. It was unnecessary
that I should do so.

An attentive consideration of the cases has con-
vinced me that the true principle is, that these
corporate bodies, through whose agents so large a
portion of the business of the country is now car-
ried on, may be made responsible for the frauds of
those agents to the extent to which the companies
have profited from these frauds; but that they
cannot be sued as wrongdoers by imputing to them
the misconduct of those whom they have employed.
A person defrauded by directors, if the subsequent
acts and dealings of the parties have been such as
to leave him no remedy but an action for the fraud,
must seek his remedy against the directors per-
sonally.
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It is not out of place here to point out that the
principles insisted on for the respondent would, if
adopted by your Lordships, lead to great injustice.
Here the fraud is alleged to have been committed,
not by the incorporated company now in process
of being wound up, but by the persons who were
trading in November 1855 as an unincorporated
company under the Banking Act of 7 Geo. IV., c. 67.
It is true that many, I suppose most, of the persons
who were responsible, so far as they were respon-
sible, for the acts of the directors in 1855, became
members of the new incorporated company; but
they did not thereby transfer to the new company
the liability to be sued in consequence of frauds
previously committed by the agents of the unincor-
porated company—still less could they make other
persons, who were not members of the unincorpor-
ated partnership when the fraud was committed,

liable to be sued hecause they joined with them in
* procuring an incorporation under the Joint-Stock
Companies Act.

On these short grounds, I have come to the con-
clusion that no relevant case is stated on this re-
cord entitling the respondent to relief against the
appellants, either by way of restitutio in integrum
or by way of damages; the consequence is, that no
issues ought to have been directed ; and, therefore,
the interlocutors of the 2d February 1864 and the
9th February 1864 must be reversed.

This being so, the trial, and all connected with
it, necessarily falls to the ground. We are, how-
ever, bound to dispose of the interlocutor of the
9th of June 1865, disallowing the exceptions to the
ruling of the Lord President at the trial, and
against which the appellants have appealed. His
Lordship told the jury that if the directors put
forth in their report important statements which
they had no reasonable ground to believe to be
true, that would be misrepresentation and deceit,
and, in the estimation of the law, would amount to
frand. 1 confess that my opinion was that in
what his Lordship thus stated he went beyond
what principle warrants. If persons in the situation
of directors of a bank make statements as to the con-
dition of its affairs which they dona fide believe to
be true, I cannot think they can be represented as
guilty of fraud because other persons think, or the
Court thinks, or your Lordship thinks, that there
was no sufficient ground to warrant the opinion
which they had formed. If a little more care and
caution must have led the directors to a conclusion
different from that which they put forth, this may
afford strong evidence to show that they did not
really believe in the truth of what they stated, and
8o that they were guilty of fraud. But this would
be the consequence, not of their having stated as
true what they had not reasonable ground to believe
to be true, but of their having stated as true what
they did not believe to be true. On this ground, I
should have thought that the exceptions ought to
have been allowed, so that the interlocutor of the
9th of June 1865 must be reversed. But my noble
and learned friend is of a different opinion, and I
readily yield to him.

It is hardly necessary to advert to the cross ap-
peal; but it is due to Mr Addie to say, that if a
relevant case had been stated on the record on both
heads on which relief is asked, and it had been
necessary to direct issues, I think he is right in
his contention that those issues ought to have been
so framed as to exhaust the whole case, so as to
make it impossible that it should be necessary at a

future time to frame further issues and incur the
delay and expense of another trial.

Lorp Coroxsay—My Lords, as I did not hear
the whole of the argument for the appellants in
this case, I take no part in the deliberations upon
it and the judgment which is about to be given;
but as an appeal has been made to me on the point
of the form of the proceedings, I may say, if the in-
terlocutor of relevancy is reversed, it will fullow
from that that the cause will be dismissed, and then
all that followed after that interlocutor falls to the
ground ; there will be no occasion for dealing with
the matter of the new trial, or the exception, or any-
thing else, for the whole will fall. Perhaps the
form of the judgment should be—that the interlo-
cutor should be reversed, with a declaration that
the Court. should have sustained the objection to .
the relevancy and dismissed the action, or some
such direction ; so as to make it clear that nothing
which followed from the interlocutor is to stand.

Sir RounperL Parmer—Your Lordship has not
put the question as to the cross appeal—I presume
that that will be dismissed, with costs, The cross
appeal related to an issue which your Lordships
thought was properly not directed.

Lorp Cmanceror—We did not dispose of the
cross appeal; it escaped me because there was
scarcely any argument upon it, but it must be
disposed of. I apprehend that the cross appeal
must be dismissed.

Logrp Cranworra—I think there ought to be
a declaration that no relevant case is stated on
the record, and that, therefore, the interlocutor
should be reversed ; and there should be a decree of
absolvitor. With regard to the appeal of Mr Addie
as to the issues, I think he is right in saying that, .
if there had been a relevant case stated in both
issues, the issues ought to have been so framed as
to exhaust the whole case. .

DEax or Facrrry (Moxcrerer)—Upon that foot-
ing we were entitled to have redress.

Lorp CmaxceLror—It appears to me that an
issue with regard to damages could not have been
framed, because Mr Addie was not entitled to da-
mages ; he was only entitled to rescind the contract
with the Company, as I have expressed in the ob-
servations I made to your Lordships. It appears
to me, therefore, that that interlocutor ought to be
affirmed.

Deax or Facorry (Moxcrerrr)—Your Lordships
can hardly affirm that interlocutor, because your
Lordships’ judgment on the relevancy implies that
it ought not to have been pronounced. -

Loxrp Cranworra—If there be a declaration that
no relevant case was stated, and that, consequently,
there ought to have been a decree of absolvitor,
everything else follows, All the issues which are
directed upon the footing of there having been a
relevant case stated fall to the ground. If you say
that there was no relevant case stated upon the re-
cord, and that there ought fo have been an absolyi-
tor, it seems to me that that brings it all to an end.

Logp CranceLLor—My noble and learned friend
will forgive me, but we must in some way dispose
of that appeal of Mr Addie’s. Mr Addie appeals,
complaining that proper issues were not directed. I
am afraid my ndble and learned friend and myself
differ in some degree with regard to the issues,
My noble and learned friend seems to have thought
that the issues ought to have covered the whole
case, and that they ought to have been sent to a
jury. Ithink that, inasmuch as under the circum-
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stances the pursuer would have no right to damages
against the Company, therefore the Court of Ses-
sion was right in not directing any issue to be tried
with regard to the claim of damages. Therefore,
upon that ground, I consider that the interlocutor
is right; but, of course, if my noble and learned
friend is of a different opinion, the consequence will
be that it will be reversed. -

Lorp Wesrsury—My Lords, if I may venture
for a moment to interpose, we had this matter very
much discussed in a case which occurred some
years.ago, and which, after numerous proceedings,
was brought to the bar of this House, and it was
found that there was no relevant matter in the suit.
The effect was, that a decree of absolvitor was pro-
nounced which discharged the whole action ; and it
would be highly inconsistent and contrary to that
decree if, after having pronounced it, you were to
go on and give an opinion upon any subsequent in-
terlocutory proceedings that have taken place in
the cause. They fall at once to the ground.. There
is no room for the interlocutor. There is no room
for an appeal against it; and there is no room for
your Lordships to give any opinion upon that ap-
peal ; because the decree of absolvitor puts an end
to the whole action; and every interlocutor pro-
nounced subsequently to that, which ought to have
been originally pronounced, at once falls to the
ground.

Lorp CaanceLior—Already, upon the other appeal,
we have reversed the interlocutor directing issues,
and therefore we can only follow the same course
in the case of Addie’s appeal, that is, to dispose of
the appeal by reversing the interlocutor.

Siz Rounpery Paimer—DPerhaps I may be per-
mitted to observe that Mr Addie comes with an in-
dependent cross appeal, saying that another issue
ought to have been directed which was not directed.
It seeins to be the necessary consequence of your
Lordships’ judgment that that was wrong.

Lorp CranceLLor—My noble and learned friend
and I differ in opinion ypon one point. My noble
and learned friend thinks there ought to have been
an issue directed in regard to damages. If so, that
the interlocutor must be reversed, because, as we
are equally divided, that consequence necessarily
follows.

Lorp Cranworte—My Lords, I wish to set my-
self right. I do nof say that issues ought to have
been directed as to damages, but that, if a relevant
case had been stated upon both points, both as to
restitutio in integrum and also as to fraud, then I
think the Court would have been wrong in not di-
recting such issues as should have exhausted both
these points.

Deax oF Facvrry (Moncrewrr)—That was the
main subject of our contention upon that cross ap-
peal, assuming that an issue ought to have been
directed.

Sir RounpeLt Parmer—But the plaintiff failing
altogether, one would suppose that he fails as to
costs.

Lorp CraxworteE—Both parties fail altogether.

Loep CranceLror—I have no other course than
to put the question, That the interlocutors appealed
from be reversed.

Interlocutors appealed from reversed.

Agents for Western Bank—Davidson & Syme,
and Loch & Maclaurin, Westminster,

Agents for Mr Addie—Gibson, Craig, Dalziel, &

Brodies, and Grahames & Wardlaw, Westminster..

Tuesday, June 4.

WESTERN BANK ¥. BAIRD'S TRUSTEES.
WESTERN BANK ¥. BAIRD.

(In Court of Session, 4 Macph., 1071.)

Appeal—House of Lords—Interlocutory Judgment—
Competency—48 Geo. II1., ¢. 151, 3 15, An
appeal against an interlocutory judgment of
the Court of Session dismissed as incompe-
tent, the judgment appealed against having
been unanimous, and leave to appeal having
been refused by the Court below.

In 1868, the Western Bank brought an action
against William Baird, who had been a director of
the Bank from 1846 to 1852, concluding for pay-
ment of & sum of £299,736, as the amount of loss
and damage due by the defender to the Bank,—the
grounds of action being (1) gross neglect of duty *
on the part of Baird as an ordinary director of the
Bank; (2) gross neglect of duty on the part of
Baird and his co-directors. William Baird having
died, the action was continued against his trustees.
A similar action was brought against James Baird,
in which the procedure was the same. The Lord
Ordinary (Kinvocn) sustained the title to sue; re-
pelled a defence founded on a compromise by the
Bank with the other directors; sustained the rele-
vancy of the action so far as founded on the second
ground of action, and appointed the pursuers to
lodge an issue. The Second Division of the Court
unanimously adhered to that interlocutor, in so far
as it sustained the pursuers’ title; quoad wiira re-
called the interlocutor in koc statw ; found that the
compromise pleaded by the defenders did not bar
the action; and, before farther answer, remitted to
an accountant to investigate the Bank books, and
report upon the alleged losses sustained by the
Bank. The Lard Justice-Clerk, who delivered the
judgment of the Court, stated that the Court were
clearly of opinion that the action was not, in any
proper sense, an action of damages; that it was
not one of the enumerated causes, and need not
immediately or necessarily be sent to a jury; and
that it was expedient, in the meantime, to sim-
plify the subject-matter of the action by remitting
to an accountant; giving no opinion, in the mean-
time, that the question as to Mr Baird’s alleged
gross negligence was not a proper question fo be
tried by a jury.

The pursuers petitioned the Court for leave to
appeal against this interlocutor. The Court re-
fused the petition.

The pursuers then presented an appeal to the
House of Loxds. The respondents, Baird’s Trus-
{oes, craved the House to refuse to receive the peti-
tion of appeal, or make any order of service there-
on, on the ground: that the appesl was incompetent.
The Appeal Committee, on 6th August 1866,
ordered that the appeal be received, and that the
question of the competency of the appeal be re-
served to the hearing of the appeal at the Bar.

An appeal was, accordingly, presented by the
Bank, and the following reasons were stated in
support :—

1. Because the action, which is the subject of the
remit complained of, being an action founded on
* delinquency, or quasi-delinquency,” and its con-
clusions being for *damages only and expenses,”
is a cause ‘‘appropriate to the Jury Court,” and
the matter of fact to be ascertained between the
parties must accordingly be tried by jury.



